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FOR THE RELIEF OF THE WICHITA A P AFFILIATED BANDS 
OF INDIANS. 

H O U S E OF REPRESENTATIVES, 
SUBCOMMITTEE OF THE COMMITTEE ON I N D I A N A F F A I R S , 

Thursday, January 1918. 
The subcommittee, composed of Representatives Tillman, Hastings, 

and Norton, met at 10.30 o'clock, Hon. John N. Tillman presiding. 
Mr. T I L L M A N . Gentlemen, this is a hearing on H . R . 7 5 8 4 , a bill 

introduced by Mr. Ferris, of Oklahoma, and this subcommittee has 
been appointed by Chairman Carter for the purpose of hearing a 
number of gentlemen who are present. 

The contention of the Wichita Indians for a number of years has 
been that they are the owners of that land situated between the 
ninety-eighth and one hundredth meridians of west longitude and 
the Canadian River on the north and the Red River on the south, in 
the State of Oklahoma, and originally known as the " leased district," 
now known as the Commanche country. 

The chairman has been informed that Mr. Walker shall come first. 

STATEMENT OF MR. PHILLIPS WALKER, ATTORNEY AT LAW, 
OF WASHINGTON. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . What is your name, age, and occupation ? 
Mr. W A L K E R . Phillips Walker, aged 58 years, attorney at law, 

Washington, D. C. 
Mr. T I L L M A N . In what capacity do you appear? 
Mr. W A L K E R . I am simply, Mr. Chairman, as a witness here. Some 

15 or 20 years ago I was attorney for these Indians and I got a good 
deal of information about them, and I told one of their delegates if I 
was asked to come up here I would come up and tell what I knew 
about it. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . The committee would be glad to hear from you. 
Mr. W A L K E R . If, however, I seem to advocate the matter at all, it 

is because it is matters of opinion. 
I want, before I go into the facts of this case, to call the com-

mittee's attention to one matter. In the bill this matter is referred 
to the Court of Claims to ascertain certain facts and render judg-
ment if they see fit. In the two claims that I have gone before the 
Court of Claims from Congress, namely, the Cherokee case and the 
Wichita case, the Court of Claims was given equity jurisdiction. The 
reason is this: The appeal that goes up on law goes up on facts, and 
the Supreme Court takes them as facts and the equity cases, the case 
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goes up and the Supreme Court considers and determines the facts as 
well as the law; and in cases that have gone before the Court of 
Claims in this sort of claim, the Court of Claims is authorized to sit 
as a court of equity. The right of appeal to the Supreme Court will 
be negative. 

As I said I was one of the attorneys for these Indians in the case 
they had before the Supreme Court in the nineties. I took the part 
of the case dealing with the aboriginal occupancy and in the course 
o± live years of study became very well acquainted with it Since 
the case was decided, about 1902, these Indians from time to time 
have—some of them—came to see me. Three years ago they came in 
and talked to me about some small matters and then brought up this 
claim to the leased district. I told them I couldn't appear for them 
or do anything for them without a contract approved by the Secre-
tary of the Interior, because it was a tribal matter. We went down 
to see the assistant commissioner, and he told them that he was favor-
able to having this matter submitted to the court, but that the policy 
of the department was against making any contract with an attorney 
tor any congressional work; that when the bill was referred to the 
Court of Claims they would take up the question of attorneyship. 

11 1 to.lci t h e m 1 would serve them as individuals in drawing 
U P L ^ f m ? r i a l t 0 a c c o m P a n y any bill, for which they agreed to pay 
me $500. I started in on it, and when I sot about half through I came 
to the conclusion that $500 was insufficient, and I stopped it. but I have 
got what I have here, and I am going to refresh my memory about 
dates. The date m this bill regarding the occupancy rights is 1883. 
That was thedate of the Paw Paw treaty. The United States Gov-
ernment was looking for a place to put the Indians from east of the 
TrSesSiPP 6 d l a n S a f t e r w a r d s known as the Five Civilized 

Gen. Clark, who joined Lewis in the Lewis and Clark expedition 
was made superintendent of the southwestern Indians, and he was 
instructed to make a treaty with the Quapaw Indians! Associated 
with him was Auguste Choteau, who had been a trader at St Lows 
tor a great many years and was as well acquainted with the Indian 
situation of that country as anybody else. Choteau, in 1816 had 
made an extensive report to the Government on the Indian 'occu-
pancy, as far as known. The Quapaws at that time consisted of 1 060 
people—men, women, and children—and they had about 60 or 70 
warriors; and they occupied four villages on the Arkansas River 
that was at Arkansas Post, in the neighborhood of the city of 
Little Rock. J 

Gen. Clark, in that same year, as superintendent of the Missouri 
Indians, reported about the same facts. Gen. Clark left Wash 
mgton to make this treaty and told the Secretary of War, who had 
control of such matters in those times, that the territory acquired 
ought to cover the white settlements, and he went out with that 
intention. He reported, when the treaty was made, that he had 
been very successful, had acquired that land, and also land far to 
the west, about 30,000,000 acres, and that he acquired from the In 
mans living on the Arkansas River near its mouth. The bounds of 
the cession were united on the north by the Arkansas and Canadian 
Rivers, and on the south by the Red River, while on the west thev 

ran from the source of the Canadian River south to the Red River. 
The best map of that country at that time was Pike's, which had 
been issued about a year before, and on which the Canadian River was 
supposed to rise in what would be the extreme western part of Okla-
homa now. 

It was not until 1820 that Maj. Long came down what he sup-
posed to be the Red River from its source, but which proved to be the 
Canadian River; and from that he was able to inform the Govern-
ment that the Canadian River rose in the Rocky Mountains at about 
the one hundred and third meridian. 

In 1825 the Government made a treaty with the Osages in the 
nature of a quitclaim, which somewhat affects this territory. The 
boundary of that on the west was a line running from the source 
of the Kansas River southwardly through the Rock Saline. While 
Pike's map is very inaccurate in some things, it is very accurate in 
others, and it shows these rivers. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . What Pike is that ? 
Mr. W A L K E R . Zebulon Pike: he was the Pike who was captured by 

the Spanish in the neighborhood of Santa Fe. Everything he put 
on his map after that was from hearsay. The rest of it was from 
more or less pretty accurate surveys. The sources of the Kansas 
were pretty accurately known. The Rock Saline was a well-known 
landmark in northern Oklahoma. A line projected on a present-day 
map and run from the sources of the Kansas southeastwardly to 
about Denison, Tex., would be about right and would not cover any 
of this leased district. 

So I want to say, it seems to me, that the theory of this bill is that, 
by some act, in 1818, the United States acquired possession and 
rights to the leased district. It seems to me that the matter ought 
to be submitted to the court, in addition, as to whether the Quapaw 
treaty and the subsequent Osage treaty of 1825—these are the only 
two—really did reach this territory. It is taken for granted in that 
t ill that, they did. The United States having acquired, or pretended 
to acquire, however it stands, that right to Arkansas and Oklahoma 
as they stand to-day, and, because of the discovery of the sources of 
the Canadian River to the west, also of the Panhandle and part of 
New Mexico, we entered into a treaty with the Choctaws in 1820, 
giving them all the Quapaw section west of Arkansas. In the mean-
time, the Spanish treaty of 1819 had been negotiated, and that fixed 
the limits between Louisiana—the vast territory of Louisiana—and 
the Spanish possessions, and fixed them on a line running north 
from the mouth of the Sabine River, to the Red River, then up the 
river to the one hundredth meridian, north by that meridian to an-
other point, and off to the Snow Mountains, it is the one hundredth 
meridian, at that point, that interests us. 

Ratifications were not exchanged in connection with the Spanish 
treaty until 1823, after the Choctaw treaty had been confirmed. If 
it ran to the true source of the Canadian River, it was ceding Spanish 
territory. So it became necessary, in 1830, to make a new treaty with 
the Choctaws. limiting their section to the one hundredth meridian. 
The Choctaws afterwards claimed that they were giving up some-
thing for which they should be compensated*. 
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P w / 8 8 7 - t h e C^ckasaws were admitted into partnership with the 
Choctaws in that territory. That partnership did not deprive the 
Choctaw it simply admitted the Chickasaws into tha? interest 
That status continued until 1854. I think-1855, when e Choctuws 
and Chickasaws leased to the United States, for the permanent Z 
lenient ot the Wichita and such other tribes or bands of Indians a; 

^ Robert S Y " ^ k W n ° k n d s to c S ^ f e ? S Roberts Neighbors was appointed superintendent of the Texas 
S f e S k a ™ ^ T h T 1 t h ^ f t h e r ' t i o S G t h a t - e resedent t r " U 1 ° v f * ™ a p . That was m 1848 or 1849. The Texas land g n n k 

around thei? " U O W ° k l a h o m a « little bit in C i T a l S 

great wanderers; they split np, and s l T S U ? ^ e n t to live" wUh 

went ciown into lexas,and they were scattered all through that conn 

I hat situation resulted in a conference at Fort Arbuckle in 1859 

a kind of barrier between the Indians on the east and hose on t i t 
west, and was a landmark in those days 

i n T r l s a S T r r a ' a n d 1 t m T * e X P 1 " o r e r e J w h o t o those Indians 
f i n i s h called them X ^ ' ^ t n S f e d T ^ 
that neighborhood until about 1810. W ^ i E %>Wn if 
pox among the Indians at that time. ^ S S S ; 
he W,ch.ta Mountatns, on the western side. The fwere ?here in 

Indians in ftat ^ o l f r v w - f b l ° U t ^ M e X P e d i t i ° " to Lnpress the rnmmmmm 

Qsa,res. He had some Osages with him, and they agreed to the 
execution of a treaty of peace, and such a treaty was executed in 
1835 bv which the Wichitas were acknowledged at least as occupants 
of that country, and agreed to permit the free passage of white set-
tlers from there to the Republic of Mexico, and not to molest their 
red brothers. It was a general treaty of amity. 

The Gomanches were a party to that treaty, and the Kiowas to a 
similar one in 1887. The Kiowas and Comanches had ranged in that 
territory, but had no settlements. They had no conflict with the 
Wichitas, because they were an agricultural tribe; and then, again, 
they were too weak to fight them. 

Then, the Osage peril being out of the way, these Indians came to 
the eastern end of the mountains, where Fort Sill is, and they lived 
there for a number of years. Afterwards they moved to a village on 
Rush Creek, which is just west of the present town of Chickasha. 
They were there prior to 1859. Then there was trouble. A large 
Comanche body was visiting them, and Maj. Van Dorn attacked 
them, and they claimed it was the result of the conduct of the Wichi-
tas. When Maj. Neighbors came up, with the delegates from the 
Texas Indians, he found the Wichitas there. All they did there at 
Fort Arbuckle was to agree that the Caddos and other tribes were 
to come up and live with the Wichitas, and have whatever rights the 
Wichitas had. Whatever rights they had was in this partnership into 
which thev were admitted bv this agreement at Fort Arbuckle in 
1859. 

Now, about that time an Army officer, whose name I do not recall, 
made a reconnoissance of that leased district, and he made a report, 
which was published in the congressional document some 25 years 
ago—I do not recall the date. It would make very interesting read-
ing, in the light of present-day development of that territory. It 
was stated that the place was not fit for settlement ; that the streams 
were all alkaline; that the soil was not fertile; and that it would 
be a good place to keep these Indians. I remember when I was a 
boy, which was not long after that, that all that territory was called 
the Great American Desert on the school maps. 

This was the attitude then adopted: Here is some territory that is 
worthless to us. and Are will give it to you. 

I he Indian claim—and they have always claimed since then— 
that at that time they were promised what is now known as the 
leased district as long as wood grows and water runs. 

There was an original map, which is now in the Indian Office, 
on which was put across this entire tract " Leased district for 
Wichitas. Wacos, and Caddos." That was in 1859. 

Then the Civil War came on, and the Choctaws and Chickasaws 
seceded and joined the South. The Wichitas as a body were loyal 
and were driven as refugees into Kansas, and they remained there 
during the war. After the war they came back; and so did the 
Choctaws and Chickasaws. Of course, under the circumstances, 
the Choctaws and Chickasaws became supplicants. There was a 
conference at Fort Smith, and it resulted in a treaty being executed 
m 1866. by which the Choctaws and Chickasaws sold to the United 
States the district which they had leased to the United States in 

j T h e o r i g i n a l l e a s e was for the settlement of the Wichita 
and other friendly Indians. The sale had no such exemption, and 



thai cSouWntav.gaVe ^ to ^ l a t e r Choctaw and Chickasaw claim t o 

b r c b a n d s of Indians J 
the agent had failed to call a council ^ ^ ?J5 !" r e P o r t that 
few headmen and brought thVm n ? ' 'V- 6 h a d hast ]1 .v selected a 
cametoWashinoton mrf , / T - 0 1 1 U p o n h l s o w n initiative. Thev 
a f t e r w a r d s 8 t o ^ s ^ e W ^ t a W T ™ ^ w h i c h 

That lay between the Washita^anrl r f . r 1 0 V a S S e t a p a r t f o r them 
ninety-eighth degreeaid 98 d e ^ n S S ^ T ^ ^ the 
ment thev renounced all Hni™ £ m m u t . e s - In that agree-
got back home thev were feludltLT t 1 e r r i t°7- When they 
was never approved A e k e r n e l 
ment did was to d d m e a t e f t f b ^ ^ r i ^ S ® t h e ^ 

New Mexico, and runn n^ over » "est of 98° to 

wa^made^with ^ ^ % = 

a portion i f th t S distTicfTb ^ ^ ^ a n d Arapahoes 
Kiowa and C o m l n ^ L S ^ ^ V ' P o r t l ° n north of the 
ated bands withouta hfbTtat ' ^ W k h i t a s a n d 

w o u ^ r e X K t s f f S y 1 1 ^ ^ what 
the Cheyennes and I r a p Z S I n 1890* ^ ^ Se t a p a r t f o r 
with the Che venues and 1 8 9 ? a n agreement was made 
Now, it was at thSTime th^t t^ Pi°eS"f 1 ratified in 1891. 
the claim i L t T l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ - s f ^ c e d 

moment it ^ ^ m ^ m d that the 
mined, and they became " t h e w h l t e s t h a t trust deter-
$1.25 an acre for s e l l i t ° fo mPen fation at the rate of 
and in t h ^ ^ o f X a i v ^ r " f* a ? o t t e d t o the Indians; 
gress recognized Aat right and rm? Arapahoe Reservation, Con-' 
Arapahoes, but paid the c C t l v J t h e C h ^ n e s and 
their interest h A h o s e l a n d s Z s i d e n t $2>991<450 f o r 

opposed to this, and the bil reached him o^ ZT ST mUch 
sion. and he approved it - 1 t h e *ast d a y of the ses-
at the beginning of the 'next ^ a communication to Congress 
money, and he fave re^so h f l T " T / ^ 16 h a d n o t P «d that 
for further insm^io s Ccm , l l o t to pay it and asked 
its former action and "n 3 e \ p a S S e d a ^solution reaffirming 
money which had b^n Z X v ^ f T ^ T ? 1 1 ^ d i r e c t e d t h a t t h e 

In 1892 the K o ' ^ v ^ , 1 s h ° u l d b e P a i d over at once. . 
they took allotments a i ^ -hich 
acted upon until 1900. when it was ratified W a S 

In 1891 the Wichitas took allotments and ceded their surplus 
lands, and that agreement was ratified in 1895. That agreement did 
not make any provision for compensation for the surplus lands, but 
referred the matter to Congress; but in forwarding the agreement 
the Commissioner of Indian Affairs expressed the opinion that the 
Choctaws and Chickasaws would claim an interest in these lands, 
as thev had in those of the Cheyennes and Arapahoes, but did not 
consider the claim well founded. When this Wichita matter came 
up to Congress this claim came along with it. Senator Jones in the 
Senate and Mr. Peel in the House introduced bills for their relief. 
Congress cut the whole Gordian knot by sending it to the Court of 
Claims. The Choctaws and ChickasaWs were to file a petition, and 
the Wicliitas were to reply to that petition, and if they did not do 
that they were to forfeit their rights. The result of that suit was a 
finding for the Choctaws and Chickasaws, but there was a dissenting 
opinion by Justice —. afterwards Chief Justice, which was to 
the effect that the attempt to charge the treaty with a trust was a 
political question, which could not be delegated by Congress to the 
courts. 

The same question had been decided in the Old Settler Cherokee 
case. The point was that 3*011 could not reform a treaty as you could 
a deed. That point was raised in the Court of Claims by these 
Indians, and the same line of defense was established. The reason 
I have called attention to that is that these Indians paid their attor-
neys forty-three or four thousand dollars for services. They had a 
6 per cent contract. They also paid some money for printing 
briefs—perhaps $1,000. I have always thought that they ought to 
have that paid back. They were defending the title of the United 
States. They were settling for the United States a test case. The 
principle involved the whole leased district—about 10,000,000 acres, 
at $1.25 an acre. The Indian bill was then before the Senate, and 
they were not satisfied with the method of payment for these surplus 
lands. For the school lands there was a judgment. For the others 
they were to be paid for when sold by the United States. It seemed 
a very indefinite proposition. We wanted to get our fee. We went 
before the Indian Committee of the Senate. The committee said 
to us, -'This bill is pretty well loaded up, and we can not do it. 
but we will loan these Indians enough money to pav vour fees and 
$43000 b a ° k W h e n t h e y SCl' t h e i r l a n d s ' " S o they' appropriated 

At the same time Senator Piatt, Senator Jones, and two or three 
others expressed a good deal of doubt as to whether the United 
states ought not to pav the bill. Thev said it was very unfair when 
the Indians were defending the title of the United States. That 
matter, of course, is not here. But I wanted to say that much for 
their benefit. 

This case in the Court of Claims, and which went to the Supreme 
V-01 . nivoh-ed only the Wichita Reservation, and not the leased 
aistrict. The Court of Claims did try to decide that matter acl-

ersely to the Indians, but when they got up to the Supreme Court 
Reports) - language (the case is reported in 179 United States 

Sta.t®s ins ists that it should be made a condition of any decree 
- - ttie rights to compensation on account of surplus lands, that the 
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jurisdictional a c t ' f H g l l t r<> the e v e i ' v c l a i l " 
Choctaw, S d C M ^ a ^ o7Sn° taV h a I W ° " W X 
Pute, and the claim o f t h e w£i\S ^ i n J h e Particular lands heS n , ! f 
in monev for- their " iclnta and affiliated band* tn 11 d l s " 
bv that '-h- i, P » f essory right in such lands v " compensated 

Article I\ reads as follows • 

W a s S ^ ? S L ^ T Z l ^ f f I8 W h a t t h e S e M - n s 
formally m this bill—the"'right f V S UkI a r e asking for 
to them by their treaty of 1^91 l ^ ^ o h " ^ 1 1 1 w h i f i h W a s s e r v e d 
reserved to them by its ratification of Is95 g l 'eSS S a l d s h o u l d b e 

possessor^rlhte to tSSse ̂ d ^ e i ^ ^ d ' r tf ̂ O ^ « 
cessions; second, that the Wichita T n ^ f l e Q u a P a w Osage 
1759, occupants of this on ' l f f J e r e / a s far back as 
affiliates were admitted t y ^ ^ , ^ t l l e C a d d o s and their 
m 1809; that these rights o f Z I n ^ n l v L v ^ f 7 t h a t the-v h a d 

by any agreement, and were definft I L ^ ? 0 t b e e n extinguished 
m the treaty of 1891. <K*mtely reserved as subjects of claim 

Another word: What Ir^ri Lt t 
the very beginning the S m l i f p e ° p l e / i r e these Indians? From 
counts of Army olcer X v L T Z ^ ' ^ e ™ d s the a " 
permanent villages-or v i l K t fc ^ t h a t the-y l i v e d in 
grass houses, and looked like i m m J Z u \ f e W •v'ears- Thev were 
m the Smithsonian shows hem l ke ^ J 1 ™ - C a t l i n ' s lecture 
of those houses show them to W e if< B a t T h p remains 
foundations were there a few years a * u f f a i r s : their 
of those villages a few vears and h ^ I n d i a n s l i v e d m one 
but a little way off- there t w V m o v e d a w a y , not very far 
farther along, L a k e " Z V n Z f ^ » ^ ^ ^ 
They were agricultural people- W v i t h e y d l d n o t roam. 
pumpkins, corn, etc. It was woWl Sb" f d f ° p s - watermelons. 
and Comanches to come there S £ r J h e r 0 a m i ^ " W s 
one reason why the Iviowas and V ' T t h a n d ^at is the 

That has always been t h d r r e c ^ t t v f ° W e d t h e m to live. 
sedentary, agricultural people / n Z n . T i 7 f V e alwa^vs a 
quite a record as horse thieves hut T f 1 £ e ° p l e - T l l o v did have 
They lived right aroimd the Wi ^ • W e n t t h e ^ 
Armv officers, before it became apparen^twTb' * A 1 1 t h e earlier 
valuable territory, reported that t h f W k h i H s t a d l , T ™ ^ »v jcniras had Jived around that 

country from time immemorial. Gen. Scott, recently Chief of Staff, 
when this case was tried was a captain at Fort Sill, and he assisted 
in getting some information. He knew these Indians well, and his 
deposition was taken. He said that the Wichitas, as he had been 
told by old members of the Comanche Tribe, had been around that 
country from time immemorial; that they went there long before the 
Comanches, who found them there; that the Comanches were the 
oldest settlers around there except the Wichitas. That was his tes-
timony. All the evidence goes to provide that they were a permanent 
people there. Now, what would their possessory rights amount to? 
Undoubtedly they did a good deal of hunting; their hunting covered 
a certain amount of territory; they had their settlements. They did 
not hunt as the Comanches and Kiowas, who roamed up North and 
away down South, but they hunted around in their territory, in that 
country, and hunted buffalo out on the plains. Those are the facts 
about those people as I have covered them. I have gone into their 
history pretty thoroughly. I started a memorial on the subject, but 
was interrupted. In "its present form it is worthless. It could be 
completed if I got into the spirit again. That is about the sub-
'stance of what it would contain. 

I am not expressing any opinion as to the justice of this claim. 
You are better qualified for that, and perhaps the Court of Claims, 
if Congress concludes to send it over to them, will look into it 
thoroughly; but I do think these men ought to have their chance. 
There would be some expense involved—not for attorneys, possibly, 
but for briefts and printing. I think that in the old case the Indian 
Office concluded that when the case was sent to the Court of Claims 
the Indian Office were authorized to pay the bills out of their tribal 
funds. They did do it, then. It was probably $1,000; perhaps more. 
I simply make the suggestion. That is for printing of briefs, etc. 
Of course attorney fees would be under another category. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . D O you understand that the mere possessory occu-
pancy of the lands, without any authority on the part of the Gov-
ernment. without a treaty, would give them any title to those lands? 

Mr. W A L K E R . The question of possessory occupancy was decided 
t,y Marshall in the case of Worcester v. Georgia, and it was decided 
that they did have a possessory right which the United States must 
recognize. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . Which the United States must recognize? 
Mr. W A L K E R . Yes. In other words, they could not kick them out; 

but it was not one that would prevent the United States from nego-
tiating for the settlement and cession of the lands. I think the Lone 
Wolf case, which the Supreme Court decided some 15 years ago, 
somewhat modified the possessory question: but my general idea has 
been this, that when the United States acquired territory from for-
eign governments, as it acquired Louisiana—I can give you a cita-
tion of a case on that—that they acquired it subject to the possessory 
rights of the Indians. The case is Holclen v. Joy (17 Wall., 211). 
The occupancy right is abandoned if the occupancy is abandoned by 
the Indians. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . These Indians had possession of this particular 
tract of land prior to 1803 ? 

Mr. W A L K E R . The year 1818 is given in the bill. 
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S S f i ~ S ^ c f t t e S i t 
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right ? a r e 9 u i t e sure that they have n ^ - j . possessory 

tor of the Navy D e l e f t 1 h a T e b e m A " t to the Solici-

Mr. W ^ : I o ° U h a V e i n t e r e s t this case? 

ri Mr! reiT.illuminating. 

fewSrP unduf 

be given their dav i n c o t f * " b n t «>«e Indians that thev 

the Court of Claims, and briefs Of h e P™tmg of the record in 
tune Of the attorney who woSld be taken' f ' " ™ ' W i n v o 1 ™ also the 
expense of the Indians wonld • s T e o t h e r "orlc. The 

Mr. T I L L M A N That S L » V printing of the briefs 
Mr. W A L K E R . Yes d b e b o r n e by the tribes? 

b e e " r e t i r i n g law here for some time in 
Mr. W A L K E R . About 2 5 vears TF +i 

dians there would be a judgment for f ? W e n t a & i n s t the In-
record. They stopped ^ 

during the last year. They are insisting on abstracts, and printing 
the abstracts, and they have reduced the expense somewhat. 

Mr. NORTON. Y O U have read this bill, have you ? 
Mr. W A L K E R . Only when I came up this morning. 
Mr. NORTON. The main part of the bill is not in the form of a bill 

presenting a claim to the Court of Claims. There are requirements 
for specific findings in the bill. 

Mr. W A L K E R . A S I have said, there have been this Old Settlers 
Cherokee case and this Wichita case, which did go down by congres-
sional reference, and which went to the Supreme Court. In both 
cases the court was given equity jurisdiction, and the result of that 
was that the whole record went up to the Supreme Court. There 
were no findings. If an appeal should be given to the Supreme Court 
in this case, it seems to me the whole record should go up. If it goes 
down as a law case, the Court of Claims finds facts conclusively, and 
the Supreme Court can not touch them. If it goes down as an equity 
case, the whole record will go to the Supreme Court, and they could 
act upon the facts as well as on the law. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . H O W many Indians have you? 
Mr. L A M A R . We have 1 , 1 2 4 . 
Mr. T I L L M A N . H O W much did they recover under the former 

Wichita claim, if you recall? 
Mr. W A L K E R . I have that here somewhere. That was all for that 

possessory right—$1.25 an acre. If they got the same amount for 
the rest, they would get nine or ten million dollars. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . I refer to the other claim they had before the Court 
of Claims. What did this amount involve—nine or ten million ? 

Mr. W A L K E R . In round figures; yes. They recovered—there were 
3,000,000 in the Kiowa and Comanche Reservation and 1 , 5 0 0 , 0 0 0 
in Greer County; in the Wichita reservation there were 5 7 7 , 9 3 2 . 
The surplus lands, at $ 1 . 2 5 an acre, was $ 7 2 2 , 2 1 5 . 5 6 . , of wdiich 7 9 , -
6 1 1 . 6 5 acres were school lands, and for these Congress appropriated, 
by the deficiency act of 1 9 0 2 , $ 9 9 , 5 1 4 . 5 6 ; the remainder, of the value 
of $ 6 2 2 , 7 0 1 , was to be paid for when disposed of by the United 
States. I don't know whether they have ever got their money for 
that. Three years ago I was told they had not. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . Have you a reference to the decision of the Court 
of Claims in the Wichita case? 

M r . W A L K E R . Y e s , s i r ; 1 7 9 U . S . . 4 9 4 . 
Mr. T I L L M A N . And the Court of Claims reference? 
Mr. W A L K E R . I haven't that; but I can get it and telephone it up 

to the clerk for the record, if you wish it. 
Mr. T I L L M A N . I wish you would do that. 
Mr. W A L K E R . All right. It is 34 C. C., 17. 
Mr. T I L L M A N . That is all. We will now hear from Arthur Pickard. 

STATEMENT OF ARTHUR PICKARD, A WICHITA INDIAN, ACCOM-
PANIED BY ALBERT LAMAR, ACTING AS INTERPRETER, BOTH 
OF ANABARKO, OKLA. 

(Examination conducted through the interpreter.) 
Mr. T I L L M A N . Y O U are a Wichita Indian ? 
M r . PICKARD. Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. T I L L M A N . H O W old are you? 



Mr ? 0 r t ^ years old. 
Mr! S S f c Z s e P T r d ^ ^ S t a " . 

but I want you p e o p l e T o d o n T t h e f j ^ a 

matter. My peSple to-dafhavelrof Tt n p ip ing uS through this 
knowledge, that they am real * S ^ V V ' h e a d s ' f r o m Present 
and some day they m a v h»\ l V e n t l t l e d t o this piece of property 
Claims to finish it up T W W ^ T T ? ^ i n t o ^ e Court ô ' 
as far back as I can L i m b e r Z veortt 1 ^ ^ ° l d p e°p l e> a n d 

we were the owners of this p L e ofP?Srf, l l a y e / l w a ^ told me that 
we are now and beyondsoith to S ' i f 0 1 ™ d o f t h i s ^ e r e 
mountains 6 miles west T ! ! 1 i R e 5 R l v e r > covering these 
repeated story o 4 and ^ e T l ^ t V ^ t & s a ™ 
owners of that piece of territory»t,<?7w . l T 6 t h a t w e a r e the 
other Indians on there asfarbaJk ^ h a v e n e v e i ' any 

Gentlemen, I have never h^d thp 1 7 C a n remember. 
the people i n ' y o u r c l Z b e t r e ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ to be before 

an opportunity to come before'vo f t ^ ? r s t t l m e 1 h a ™ had 
and this is what i T m going t V ^ t r f e * S W ^ i n l i f e ' 
a S : rd levus £ t h r°«gi i with this r e a s o n a b l e a n d US 

* ^ e oldest men 
of that property south of thfr^er n n Z t L S a j T a r e t h e 0 W l i e r s 

ting the benefit of this terrUorv 7 P®??1® to-day are get-
getting nothing from rightfully own it are 
something from this piece of Z H T to be getting 

and the affiliated bribes ̂  * * ^ d i d m e a n t h e Wichitas alone 
Mr. NORTON. Just the Wichitas. 

Mr. NORTON? Y E S ^ alone ? 

thaTnefghborood ^ t h f i r e a r e — 465-something in 
l ^ t ^ B ^ ^ S S ^ t h e affiliated tribes? How many be-

Mr. T I L L M A N . All told. 
Mr. P ICKARD. Since T L V P I O Q L M „ I 7 

tory n o w - w e foundout f r o m S t r US l n t h a t t e r r i " 
Mr. NORTON. There are 1124? officer-there are 1 . 1 2 4 . 
M r . PICKARD. Y e s 

Mr What position do you occupy? 
Mr N ° ' I a m f a r m i n ^ f o r mvself. U 
AT ;;ORTOX- Are you married? " 
M r . PICKARD. Y e s . s i r . Mr. NORTON. How many children? 

is i t T I n X l V o 0 : ^ l a n d - t h e r e m a ? or two that 
Mr. NORTON. He has no land? 
Mr. L A M A R . He has 160 acres for himself. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . D O the other Wichitas have land? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. T I L L M A N . All of them? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. T I L L M A N . Allotments? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. D O they work their lands? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. Farm them? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. Have horses and cattle? 
Mr. L A M A R . They have no cattle to speak of now. They did have 

cattle until the white people got down in there and took them away. 
Mr. NORTON. What kind of houses do they have? 
Mr. L A M A R . Some live in 3-room houses. They live in houses the 

same as you people live in. 
Mr. NORTON. They are in pretty good condition, so far as living 

and taking care of themselves are concered? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. They are not receiving anything from the Govern-

ment now, are they? 
Mr. L A M A R . The rents for their farm lands—that is all. Some of 

the Indians are holding four or five allotments. 
Mr. NORTON. Most of them work on their own farms ? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. Are they good farms? 
Mr. L A M A R . Just as good as any of the white men's. 
Mr. NORTON. D O you belong to the tribe? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. Y O U have your own allotment? 
Mr. L A M A R . Yes, sir; and I work my wife's. 
Mr. NORTON. Mr. Pickard works his own allotment? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS (to Mr. Pickard). Do you actually work your own 

allotment, and raise corn and wheat ? (To the interpreter:) You can 
tell me. Is he a man that works his own allotment? 

M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS. He goes out and plows and works his land ? 
Mr. L A M A R . Yes, sir; raises corn, cotton, cane, etc. 
Mr. HASTINGS. He actually plows the ground himself, personally ? 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS. About how many of these men, these 1,124 Wichita 

and affiliated bands, work upon their own farms? 
Mr. L A M A R . Some of them are very old; I am speaking now of the 

young men, something like myself and him; and most of them do. 
Mr. HASTINGS. Most of them? 
Mr. L A M A R . Most of them; yes, sir. 
Mr. HASTINGS. I am glad to know that. Now I am going to ask 

who represents your tribe. In what way is the tribe represented? 
Is it represented^ through a chief Or a council ? 

M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS. I S it by the whole tribe being called together ? 
Mr. L A M A R . A regular council. 
Mr. HASTINGS. D O you elect your members of the council? 



M r . LAMAR. Y e s , s i r . 

Mr E A T T N O D O y ° U hSV e r e ^ u l a r elections? 
but we appoint^iir chieT ' h a V e r ^ u l a r Sections like you have 

Mr. teS6 6 l e C t e d * P « p l e t 

your council? 
Mr. HASTINGS. This bll pro J d e ^ - h " * g T a t m a n - v i n ** all. 

orney. If this bill was p a s ^ W o f at-
vv no would say 

that? ".-.umyoti employ an attorney* 

attorneymaAkes^pW°U,d ^ t 0 t a k e <*>»t«,ct, whatever contract the 
s a r -

M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 

M r W ^ Y e S / " ° ° f t h a t t r i b e ? 

the bill is to be nassed th ;V 1 • m ember of the tribe, think if 
bill about the amoiint of the " Z s h S 1° ! f ' . ' i " i n 'the 
tribe or by the Secretary of the Tnto • , b e ? x e d ' " , t h ' - r bv the 
the case? " 7 o t t h e I , l " ' n 0 1 ' °r by the court that "tries 

Mr. L A M A B I have h e a r ^ M R M a - » ° r n e ? W , h o m employ, 
said that the counsel w m l M ^ V , r e a d the bill over,' and he 

Mr. HASTINGS. Ten per cent? C e n t S ° n t h e d o l l a r 

M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 

c o m m e £ ™ e S b i n ? " y ° " h e " r d t h e commissioner 
M r . L A M A R . Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS. D O you consirW T W # • 
Mr. L A M A R . Yes. sir. n S l a e r t h a t f a i r compensation? 

M E M O R A N D U M A N D STATPIVR-PATM ^ ^ ^ 
G R E S S M A N S C O T T F E ^ R F S ^ V I / T ^ J J ^ H E A R I N G S B Y C 0 N -
H O M A D I S T R I C T A N D A I J ? H O R O F % I I T I ^ T H E S I X T H ° K L A -
R E L I E F OF T H E W I C H I T A A N D A T O S ' V ? ™ 7 5 8 4 ' A B I L L F O R T H E 
I N O K L A H O M A . A F F I L I A T E D B A N D S OF I N D I A N S 

o f ^ l S n f t o ' ^ m A e r e 1 ^ by the Wichita Tribe 
the United States their claims to c^tain a n d t h e Congress of 
names are Messrs. Stanley Edge, S n 013? \ hf ? ? t e ° f 0 k l a h 0 1 ^ Their 
Arthur Pickard, Anadarko, Okla. S J W h t r ^ ~ a m a r ' ^ d a r k o , Okla.; 
Here in person and ask to be heard 1 H o a g ' B i n g e r ' 0 k l « - Thev are 

The contention of the Wichita Indians hns tv., 
the aboriginal owners to all of 1 1 - n a i a n y -vear* been that thev are 
on the north by the Canad an R S o n t S ^ i ^ ^ bounded 
west by the North Fork of Re<l River ori fnnm l R e d R i v e r ' a n d <>n the 
now known as the Kiowa and C o m a C o S k T ? * J h e ^ -He country. The Indians of this tribe 

consist of about 1,100 full-blood Indians. They have not intermarried to any 
extent, practically all of them full-bloods and practically all of them in-
competent from the standpoint of modern business methods. They have kept 
no accurate history of their affairs and will not be able to produce* to the com-
mittee documentary evidence fully proving their claim. Their history has 
consisted of facts handed down from one generation to another, and as they 
have their history handed down to them and the facts handed down to them 
it is about as follows: 

1. They allege that the Wichita and affiliated bands of Indians were the 
aboriginal possessors of said lands at all times prior to 1818. 

2. They assert that neither they, their tribesmen, nor their ancestors have 
ever transferred in any way their title as such aboriginal owners. 

3. They ask that this controversy be sent to the Court of Claims and that an 
adjudication be afforded them. 

-L They ask that the court determine for them the value of the land per 
acre and make specific findings of fact and law on the above and foregoinsr 
contentions. & 

5. They further ask that the language of the law be so formulated that in 
the event their claims are just and found to be true that the same be certified 
t o t b « Treasurer of the United States for payment and immediate settlement 

b. 1 hey assert that the matter has been gone over carefully with their Indian 
superintendent, Mr. C. V. Stincliecum, also his predecessor. Lieut Earnest 
Stecker; that they have had many conferences and powwows about the matter 
and each and every time they have been more thoroughly convinced that thev 
have a just claim against the Government of the United States and that their 
lands were unjustly taken from them and given to other tribes of Indians for 
which they have never been paid; that they are poor and without funds-'and 
they ask that their Government hear them and allow them to present their 
claims and that their claims be not treated lightly, but that they be gone into 
thoroughly and to the end that the committee may have all the'law and facts 
before them I beg to attach herewith a brief consisting of a clear statement of 
the law and the facts as prepared by Judge C. H. Carswell, of Anadarko Okla 
an able, patriotic lawyer, and it is my belief that the same will be of value to 
the committee when the hearings are had. 

STATEMENT OF ENOCH HOAG, A CADDO INDIAN, ACCOMPANIED 
^ ^ S T A N L E Y EDGE, ACTING AS INTERPRETER, BOTH OF 

(Examination conducted through the interpreter.) 
Mr. HASTINGS. What tribe do you belong to« 
Mr. HOAG. Caddo. 
M r . HASTINGS. H O W o l d a r e y o u ? 
Mr. HOAG. Fifty-six. 
Mr. HASTINGS. Married? 
M r . HOAG. Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. HASTINGS. Any children? 
Mr. HOAG. Seven children. 
Mr. HASTINGS. Have you a farm? 
M r . HOAG. Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. EDGE. Y O U mean on his own allotment ? 
M r . HASTINGS. Y e s . 
Mr. EDGE. He has his place rented out, and he is workino- with his 

nephew on liis farm. 
Mr. HASTINGS. He has his allotment rented ? 
M r . EDGE. Y e s , s i r . 

, , ? I 1 R - T I L L M A N . Ask him what he thinks his rights are, what he 
tnmks are the merits of this bill, and what he thinks his rights are 
before the Court of Claims. 

M r . EDGE. Y e s . 
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appointedty o ™ ^ 1 ^ * ^ , ! J " ^ . We have been 
we are at present l / 1 ! them before this committee, as 
committee s f t t W h e r e * ^ t o y o " ' T h i s 

which I am not J f ' ' to kno?J they are well educated, 
home and p r 4 n t a M S f , f h e ^ f ' T 
e v i n c e to show you and convLce you peopfe f ° l l 0 " ' S ° U t t h e 

old p reopW' 1 h a ™ h e a r d b , , t h « ™ the best way-they are 

A S T " 0 8 - W m t h e C ° " e s not on this land before the 
M r . HOAG. N O , s i r . 

Mr H o W d 0 y o u , k n o w they were not? 

kmd of Comanches-the Petatik CoSnches T h e r e 'S a n ° t h e r 

Mr The j were there before the Caddos, weren't thev* 

Wichitas anything, should it? ^louici not pay the 

Mr i o ™ I T t h e K i ° W a S t h e r e b 6 f 0 r e t h e Wkhitas! 
Mr. HASTINGS.'Where did the Kiowas come from? 

'i 1 t h a t t h e K i owas went away out West and 
from Th P P H C e t 0 ]?laCe- i 1 d ° n , t k n o w e x a c t l J where hey 'came trom The old people could not tell me. Thev' wero in mS i and then in another place. 7 m ° n e P l a c e ' 

Mr. HASTINGS About how many Cadclos are there? 
if K r ( a d d r e S S 1 ^ M r - H o a ^ ) - H e asked me to tell you 

Mr. HASTINGS. Y O U tell it. then. 
Mr. EDGE. I don't know exactly'what it is now 
Mr. HASTINGS. Approximately. 
Mr. T I L L M A N . A S nearly as you can get at it 
Mr EDGE. Several years ago I was working there and during 

that time I used to make payment over to about 553. ' g 

Mr. HASTINGS. There were 553 several years ago? 
M r . EDGE. Yes . sir. 

MV. FDGE No D ° y ° U k n ° W h ° W m a n j t h e r e a r e n o w ? 

Mr. HASTINGS. Y O U don'T know? 
M r . EDGE. N O . s i r . 

Mr NORTON. The number of Wichitas and affiliated tribes 1 124 
which was given by the other gentleman, includes the Caddos? 

Mr. EDGE. Yes, sir; and Kiowas and Delawares. 
Mr. NORTON. That is, all told? 
M r . EDGE. Y e s , s i r . 
Mr. NORTON. Adding them all together? 
Mr. EDGE. Yes, sir. I see a record where it says the Kiowas and 

Canadians are just the same as the Caddos; that the Kiowas are the 
same thing as the Wichitas. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . Have you anything more to say ? 
Mr. HOAG. That is all I have to say, but would like to go on with 

one matter. 
M r . T I L L M A N . G O o n . 
Mr. EDGE. I will present this. I have here a copv of the 1835 

treaty, and would like to present that to the committee for con-
sideration. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . Put it in the record. 
(The document referred to is as follows:) 

TREATY WITH THE CADDO, 1835. 
I July 1, 1835. 7 Stat., 470. Proclamation, Feb. 2, 1836.] 

Articles of a treaty made at the agency house in the Caddo Nation and State of 
Louisiana, on the first day of July in the year of our Lord one thousand eight 
hundred and thirty-five, between .Tehiel Brooks, commissioner on the part of 
the United States, and the chiefs, headmen, and warriors of the Caddo Nation 
of Indians. 

LANDS CEDED TO THE UNITED STATES. 
ARTICLE I. The chiefs, headmen, and warriors of the said nation agree to cede 

and relinquish to the United States all their land contained in the following 
boundaries, to wit: 

BOUNDARIES. 
Bounded on the west, by the north and south line which separate the said 

United States from the Republic of Mexico, between the Sabine and Red Rivers 
wheresoever the same shall be defined and acknowledged to be by the two Gov-
ernments. On the north and east by the Red River from the point where the 
said north and south boundary line shall intersect the Red River, whether it be 
in the Territory of Arkansas or the State of Louisiana, following the meanders 
of the said river down to its junction with the Pascagoula Bayou. On the south 
by the said Pascagoula Bayou to its junction with the Bayou Pierre, by said 
bayou to its junction with Bayou Wallace, by said bayou and Lake Wallace to 
the mouth of the Cypress Bayou, thence up said bayou to the point of its inter-
section with the first-mentioned north and south line, following the meanders of 
the said watercourses: But if the said Cypress Bayou be not clearly definable 
so far then from a point which shall be definable by a line due west till it inter-
sects the said first-mentioned north and south boundary line, be the content of 
land within said boundaries more or less. 

INDIANS TO REMOVE-WITHIN ONE YEAR. 
ART. II. The said chiefs, headmen, and warriors of the said nation do volun-

tarily relinquish their possession to the territory of land aforesaid and promise 
to remove at their own expense out of the boundaries of the United States and 
the Territories belonging and appertaining thereto within the period of one year 
from and after the signing of this treaty and never more.return to live, settle, 
or establish themselves as a nation, tribe, or community of people within the 
same. 

MONEY, ETC., TO BE PAID FOR CESSION. 
ART. III. In consideration of the aforesaid cession, relinquishment, and re-

moval it is agreed that the said United States shall pay to the said nation of 
Caddo Indians the sums in goods, horses, and money hereinafter mentioned 
to wit: 

Thirty thousand dollars to be paid in goods and horses, as agreed upon, to be 
delivered on the signing of this treaty. 

Ten thousand dollars in money to be paid within one year from the first day 
of September next. 



A X AGENT OF THE NATION TO BE APPOINTED BY THEM. 

T a m i : : ? ^ N a t i T <* I a d i a - * a l l have 
States, for the purpose o f S M t h L frn l c t ' f 1 res id .e1ut within the United 
the annuities stated in t U Seaty* S t h ^ Z f l l n \ S a i d U n i t e d States all of 
their said agent or attornlv in fnc? f ™ " b e ( ' ° m e d u e t o b e Paid to 
United States as shaU^ be agreed onbetween h?™"* H01' p l a c e s ^ th in the said 
Government of the United States. l U n ' a n d t h e P r o P e r o f f lcer of the 

TREATY BINDING WHEN RATIFIED. -

t h e ^ r e L e ^ f a n d X a f o ? Jhe U n T e d X ^ ' T f ? r ? t i f i e d a n d by ing parties. L m t e d S t a t e s ' s l l a ] 1 be binding on the contract-

^ e ^ S S ^ « „„„ 

J. BROOKS. 
TABSHAR ( h i s X m a r k ) . 
TSAUNTNOT ( h i s x mark) . 
SATIOVVNHOWN ( h i s x mark) 
TENNEHINUM ( h i s x mark) . 
OAT (his x mark). 
TINNOWIN ( h i s x mark) . 
CHOWABAH ( h i s x m a r k ) . 
KIANHOON ( h i s x m a r k ) . 
TIATESUM ( h i s x mark) . 
TEHOWAWINOW ( h i s x m a r k ) . 
TEWINNUM ( h i s x mark) . 
KARDY ( h i s x m a r k ) . 

[L. s.] 
[E. s.] 
[L. s.] 
[L. s.] 
[L. s.] 

S . ] 
S . ] 

[L. 

[L , 
[L. S . ] 
[I- S.] 
[L. S.J 
[L. S.] 
[L. S.] 
[L. S.] 

TIOHTOW (his X mark). 
T E H O W A H I N N O (his x mark). 
TOOEKSOACH (his x mark) 
TEHOWAINIA (his x mark). 
SAXJNINOW (his x mark). 
SAUNIVOAT (his x mark). 
HIGHAHIDOCK (his x mark) 
MATTAN (his x mark). 
TOWABINNEH (his x mark) 
A A C H (his x mark). 
SOOKTANTOW (his x mark) 
SOHONE (his x mark). 
OSSINSE (his x mark) 

[l. s.l 
[E. S . ] 
[L. S.J 
[L. S.J 
[L. S . ] 
[E. S . ] 
[E. S.J 
[E. S . ] 
[L. S . ] 
[E. S . ] 
[E. S . ] 
[E. S . } 
[E. S . ) In presence of— 

T . J . HARRISON, 

J. BONNEEE!' ™ r d R e 9 i m e n t Infantry> C o m ^ d i n g Detachment. 

J. VFPnlieUtenanh ™ r d Re^nent, United States Infantry. 

D. M . ^ i t M % U e U t e i m n t ' ™ r d ™*<* States Infantry. 

uJ>cw"L?^r8ur0em-unitea 8 m e s 

HENRY QUEEN, 
JOHN W . EDWARDS, 

Interpreter. 

v X V ^ ^ T ^ S S e f r e a t ^ t h e r e 
and horses to the amount of thirty thousand S i r s d e l l V e r e d t o t h e m - **>ds 

under the direction of 
said Indians, the said commissfonlr J e h f e l R » 5 £ h a ™ b e e n r e c e i v « d by the 
and head men of the whole C a ^ N a t i o n n f T r S V ' e u n d e r s i sned , chiefs 
bands, and affixed their seals the thhvi , nf r ^ h a ™ hereunto set then-
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J . BROOKS. 
TARSHAR (his x mark). 
TSAUNINOT (his x mark). 
SATIOWNHOWN (his x mark). 

In presence of— 
L A R K I N EDWARDS. 
HENRY QUEEN. 
JOHN W . EDWARDS, interpreter 
JAMES FINNERTY. 

OAT (his x mark). r, s i 
OSSINSE (his x mark). f r" s ' 
TIOHTOW (his x mark). rL" s ' i 
C H O W A W A N O W (his x mark) [ / s ] 

[July 1, 1S35. 7 Stat., 472.] 

Articles supplementary to the treaty made at the agency house in the Caddo 
Nation and State of Louisiana on the first day of July, one thousand eight 
hundred and thirty-five between Jehiel Brooks, commissioner, on the part of 
the United States, and the chiefs, head men, and warriors of the Caddo Nation 
of Indians, concluded at the same place and on the same day between the 
said commissioner on the part of the United States and the chiefs, head men, 
and warriors of the said nation of Indians, to wit: 

PREAMBLE. 

Whereas the said nation of Indians did in the year one thousand eight hun-
dred and one, give to one Frangois Grappe and to his three sons then born 
and still living, named Jacques, Dominique, and Belthazar, for reasons stated at 
the time and repeated in a memorial which the said nation addressed to the 
President of the United States in the month of January last, one league of land 
to each, in accordance with the Spanish custom of granting land to individuals. 
That the chiefs and head men, with the knowledge and approbation of the 
whole Caddo people, did go with the said Frangois Grappe, accompanied by a 
number of white men, who were invited by the said chiefs and head men to 
be present as witnesses, before the Spanish authority at Natchitoches, and then 
and there did declare their wishes touching the said donation of land to the 
said Grappe and his three sons, and did request the same to be written out in 
form and ratified and confirmed by the proper authorities agreeably to law. 

And whereas Larkin Edwards has resided for many years to the present time 
in the Caddo Nation—was a long time their true and faithful interpreter, and 
though poor he has never sent the red man away from his door hungry. He is 
now old and unable to support himself by manual labor, and since his employ-
ment as their interpreter has ceased possesses no adequate means by which to 
live: Now therefore— 

GRANT BY INDIANS TO F. GRAPPE CONFIRMED. 

ARTICLE I. It is agreed that the legal representatives of the said Frangois 
Grappe, deceased, and his three sons, Jacques, Dominique, and Belthazar 
Grappe, shall have their right to the said four leagues of land reserved to them 
and their heirs and assigns forever. The said land to be taken out of the lands 
ceded to the United States by the said Caddo Nation of Indians as expressed in 
the treaty to which this article is supplementary. And the said four leagues of 
land shall be laid off in one body in the southeast corner of their lands ceded 
as aforesaid, and bounded by the Red River four leagues and by the Pascagoula 
Bayou one league, running back for quantity from each, so as to contain four 
square leagues of land, in conformity with the boundaries established and ex-
pressed in the original Deed of Gift made by the said Caddo Nation of Indians 
to the said Frangois Grappe and his three sons, Jacques. Dominique, and 
Belthazar Grappe. 

RESERVATION FOR LARKIN EDWARDS. 

ART. II. And it is further agreed that there shall be reserved to Larkin Ed-
wards, his heirs and assigns, forever one section of land to be selected out of 
the lands ceded to the United States by the said nation of Indians as expressed 
in the treaty to which this article is supplementary in any part thereof not 
otherwise appropriated by the provisions contained in these supplementary 
articles. 

ARTICLES BINDING WHEN RATIFIED. 

ART. III. These supplementary articles, or either of them, after the same shall 
have been ratified and confirmed by the President and Senate of the United 
States, shall be binding on the contracting parties, otherwise to be void and of 
no effect upon the validity of the original treaty to which they are supple-
mentary. 

In testimony whereof, the said Jehiel Brooks, commissioner as aforesaid, 
and the chiefs, head men, and warriors of the said nation of Indians, have here-
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T . J . HARRISON, 
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HENRY QUEEN. 
JOHN W . EDWARDS, Interpreter. 
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W l t h to a 
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that we were considering S e " t / ? ^ ^ ? , t 0 , d < ! w i t h bill 
connmttee were passed and the'natter were I ' i s b e f o r e t h " 
of Claims would that a d j u d i c a t i n g , Presented to the Court 
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Mr '' TV n 0 t i n 'bis bill, 
of $80,M0? T h ' S "S 3 S e n bill covering this separate claim 

M r . E D G E . N O , s i r . 

Mr. H A S T I N G S . Y O U say you are presenting a matter to the com-
mittee. I say this for vour benefit now. There is no claim before it 
in regard to this $80,000. 

Mr. E D G E . I asked the committee whether there is any objection to 
presenting the treaty of 1835. 

Mr. H A S T I N G S . There is no objection; but we wanted to know 
whether that had anything to do with the bill we are considering, 
and I want to advise you now that there is no bill before the com-
mittee to be acted upon with reference to this claim of $80,000. 

Mr. E D G E . Yes; I understand. 
Mr. H A S T I N G S . And you could not hope for this committee to take 

action upon what is not before it. It is like going into court down 
there in Oklahoma when you had no petition in court—nothing; for 
the court to act upon. So, if you want action upon this $80,000, 
mv suggestion is that you get some bill introduced covering that 
claim, and then come before the committee. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . Suppose you take that up with Mr. Ferris. 
(Whereupon the committee adjourned.) 

S U B C O M M I T T E E OF C O M M I T T E E O N I N D I A N A F F A I R S , 
H O U S E OF R E P R E S E N T A T I V E S , 

Thursday, January 31, 1918. 
The subcommittee met at 12.30 p. m.. Hon. John N. Tillman pre-

siding. 

STATEMENT BY MELVEN CORNISH, OF McALESTEB, OKLA. 

Mr. C O R N I S H . Mr. Chairman, and gentlemen of the subcommittee, 
I appear as special counsel for the Choctaw Nation. The Choctaw 
Nation has no regular attorney at this time, and the principal chief 
of the Choctaw Nation, who is now a major in the United States 
Army at Fort Oglethorpe, Ga., has requested me, by telegram, to 
make a special appearance before your subcommittee in connection 
with the bill now pending before it, which is numbered H. R. T584. 
The principal chief of the Choctaw Nation requested me to appear 
provided it was agreeable to your committee and to the Commis-
sioner of Indian Affairs; and that communication was submitted to 
Mr. Carter, chairman of the Committee on Indian Affairs, and by 
Mr. Carter to the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and they stated 
that inasmuch as there was no regular attorney for the Choctaw 
Nation at this time they had no objection to the procedure suggested, 
and it is upon that basis and the existing emergencies and my friend-
ship for the Choctaw people and my interest in their affairs that I 
appear before you in connection with this bill. 

Gov. Johnston, of the Chickasaw Nation, is present, and in view of 
the fact that the rights and interests of the Choctaws and the Chicka-
saws in this matter, and in all other matters relating to their lands and 
he proceeds thereof are identical, I will ask that my statement be 
taken by your committee as the statement of the Chickasaw Nation 
as well as the statement of the Choctaw Nation. 

Now, gentlemen, this bill, No. 7584, has been introduced on behalf 
of the Wichita Indians and referred to the Department of the In-
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Mr. HASTINGS. And substituted for 
Mr. CORNISH. And substituted for H. R. 7584. Now. gentlemen, I 

have no criticism of any kind or character to make of the bill orig-
inally introduced by the Wichitas, or the draft of a bill recommended 
by the Department of the Interior; but if that bill is reported, then 
we make the very reasonable request that we be allowed to intervene, 
and that whatever rights these Choctaws and Chickasaws have be 
litigated in that suit. 

I am sure you gentlemen are aware that the subject of the " leased 
district," and of the construction of the treaties and laws relating 
thereto, and the history of the relations between the Choctaws and 
Chickasaws on the one side and the Government on the other, and 
of the litigation and transactions of more than half a century is an 
awfully long story, and I am puzzled somewhat to know just how 
much of that story you gentlemen want to hear at this time. Before 
proceeding along that fine, or before inquiring of you gentlemen 
how you wish me to proceed along that line, I wish to state again, 
in order that it may be more firmly impressed, if possible, that we do 
not criticise the proposed bill, either as introduced by the representa-
tives of the Wichitas, or as proposed by the Department of the in-
lerior. So far as we are concerned, we have nothing to say about it 
or against it. It meets our entire approval and it certainly does not 
and could not meet our disapproval, because, if these people have 
what they deem to be a claim which is worthy of adjudication in the 
Court of Claims, and the Department of the Interior sees fit to 
accord them that privilege, that is no concern of ours. But we do 
feel, and we think that we can make plain to your committee or to 
the court, later on, if allowed to do so, that we have rights which are 
necessarily involved or affected by this proposed suit, and that we 
will be able to show that the United States should pay to the Choctaw 
and Chickasaw Nations a large sum of money, as additional com-
pensation, for the taking of these lands; and if this bill, which has 
been introduced on behalf of the Wichitas and recommended by the 
Department of the Interior, is favorably considered by your com-
mittee we wish a clause inserted allowing us to intervene and have 
the claims of the Choctaws and Chickasaws passed on in the same 
suit and at the same time. 

Mr. HASTINGS. Have you prepared such an amendment to submit 
to the committee ? 

Mr. CORNISH. Yes, sir; I have. 
Mr. HASTINGS. It would fit on either bill, either the one introduced 

or the one recommended by the Department of the Interior ? 
Mr. CORNISH. Yes, sir; I would not change a word or a line of 

the bill recommended by the Department of the Interior. We 
suggest a fourth paragraph to be an amendment. 

Mr. HASTINGS. Y O U suggest a fourth paragraph for an amend-
ment ? 

Mr. CORNISH. We suggest a fourth paragraph to be an amendment 
to that bill: that would provide for intervention by the Choctaws and 
Chickasaws. 

Mr. HASTINGS. Would it be disconcerting for you to read that 
amendment now? 

Mr. CORNISH. N O , sir; I will read it now. The amendment would 
be section 4 and would be incorporated in the bill recommended by 
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The committee will understand that the basis of the title of the 
Choctaw and Chickasaw Indians for this great area of land is con-
tained in the treaty of October 18, 1820. At that time the Choctaws 
resided in Mississippi. They exchanged an area of land aggregat-
ing more than 4,000,000 acres of land for the vast area in the West 
which appears on the map, which is now before your committee. 
The treaty was entered into in pursuance of a policy of the Govern-
ment of the United States to move the Indians from Mississippi to 
the West. The description of the land in the West thus granted to 
them is contained in article 2 of the treaty of 1820, which is as follows: 

AKT. 2. For and in consideration of the foregoing cession on the part of 
the Choctaw Nation, and in part satisfaction for the same, the commissioners 
of the United States, in behalf of said States, do hereby cede to said nation a 
tract of country west of the Mississippi River, situate between the Arkansas 
and Red Rivers, and bounded as follows: Beginning on the Arkansas River,, 
where the lower boundary line of the Cherokees strike the same; thence up 
the Arkansas to the Canadian Fork, and up the same to its source; thence 
due South to the Red River; thence down Red River, three miles below the 
mouth of Little River, which empties itself into Red River on the north side; 
thence a direct line to the beginning. 

An examination of the map will show that the lands thus granted 
were all of the territory lying west of the State of Arkansas and 
between the Canadian and Red Rivers. The map now before the 
committee is divided into sections—section 2, section 3, section 4, sec-
tion 5, section 6, section 7, and section 8. The section marked " 2 " 
is the country comprising the present Choctaw Nation; section 3 is 
the present Chickasaw Nation. In other words, sections 2 and 3 
describe the area or country now known as the Choctaw and Chicka-
saw Nations, upon which the Choctaw and Chickasaw Indians now 
reside and out of which they have taken their allotments. 

The grant in the treaty of 1820 was confirmed in the treaty of 
1830. The committee will observe that there is a vast area of land 
lying west of ths one hundredth meridian of west longitude, and 
that vast area of land was included in the grant contained in the 
treaty of 1820 and also in the treaty of 1830. In the treaty of 1855 
the Choctaw and Chickasaw Indians relinquished their claim to 
all of that land lying west of the one hundredth meridian of west 
longitude. That arose in the manner which I shall describe, and 
in doing so I quote from the decisions of the Court of Claims and 
of the Supreme Court of the United States in a case to which I 
shall shortly refer. I make the basic statement that at the time of 
the grant the United States owned that entire area of land. One 
month after the grant—and I state the conclusion of the Court of 
Claims upon this point—and one month after the ratification of 
the Choctaw treaty of 1820 the United States ratified a treaty with 
Spain in which the boundaries between United States territory and 
Spanish territory were defined and that vast area of territory lying 
west of the one hundredth meridian of west longitude was ceded to 
Spain as a part of the negotiations for the lands comprising the 
State of Florida. I will restate that in a word and then pass on. 
As the time of the grant to the Choctaws in 1820 the United States 
owned that land. One month after ratification of the treaty by 
which the Choctaws were given that territory the United States 
ceded that territory to Spain. 
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Now, I lay special stress, gentlemen, upon the conditions and cir-
cumstances under which the $ 8 0 0 , 0 0 0 was paid. At the time of the 
original grant of 1820, including the country west of the one hun-
dredth meridian of west longitude, the lands thus granted did belong 
at that time to the United States, and at that time title did pass to the 
Choctaws and Chickasaws. I also lay special stress upon the fact 
that a large part of the money paid in 1855 was for a relinquishment 
of the substantial rights of the Choctaws and Chickasaws iu that 
large territory west of the one hundredth meridian of west longi-
tude. 

Now, a word as to the basis of the rights and interests of the Chick-
asaws. This vast territory was originally conveyed to the Choctaws 
in 1820. It was again described in the treaty of 1830; and under 
that treaty it is definitely provided that an actual patent will 
be issued to the land thus conveyed; and an actual patent signed 
by the President of the United States and duly sealed was issued in 
1812 in the same way that you would have received title from the 
Government to your land in Arkansas or in Oklahoma. 

Mr. H A S T I N G S . That is, to the " leased district"? 
Mr. C O R N I S H . Yes, sir. That patent of March 2 4 . 1 8 4 2 . consum-

mated the treaty of 1820 and the treaty of 1830. 
Mr. H A S T I N G S . It did not go west of the 
Mr. C O R N I S H . The patent repeats the exact description in the 

treaties of 1820 and 1830 and also contains the proviso in the treaty 
of 1830, " if in the limits of the United States." 

Mr. H A S T I N G S . I understood you to say that in the treaty of 1 8 2 0 
they ceded that country to Spain ? 

Mr. C O R N I S H . The United States did cede to Spain, one month after 
the grant to the Choctaws, the country west of the one hundredth 
meridian of west longitude and the proviso in the treaty of 1830 
and the patent of 1842 is a recognition of the claim of the Choctaws 
to those far western lands, which claim was adjusted and paid in the 
treaty of 1855. In later treaties the description is the same as in 
the treaty of 1820. 

Mr. H A S T I N G S . In the 1 8 3 0 treaty \ 
Mr. C O R N I S H . In the 1 8 3 0 treaty, with the proviso, " if in the limits 

of the United States." This proviso was because of the pretty well 
established fact, at that time, that the United States had two out-
standing conveyances to the same land—one to the Choctaws and one 
to the Kingdom of Spain. It cheerfully paid, in 1855, the sum of 
$ 8 0 0 , 0 0 0 to redeem its warranty to the Choctaws. That, however, 
is not material here because our present discussion is as to the lands 
falling between the one hundredth meridian of west longitude and 
the ninety-eighth meridian of west longitude, east and west, and 
the Canadian River on the north and the Red River on the south 
and known as the " leased district,." 

I have set forth with some persistence and earnestness the manner 
in which the sum $800,000 was paid to the Choctaws and Chickasaws 
for the purpose of showing that the Indians were possessed of valu-
able rights in these far western lands wjiich the Choctaw Nation had 
actually acquired under the treaty of 1820. 

I now return to the basis of the interest of the Chickasaws. The 
affairs of the Chickasaws in Mississippi were not closed up when the 
Choctaws acquire'1 thp western territory under the treaty of 1820. 
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Mr. CORNISH. Yes, sir. I stated this morning that we have a pro-
posed amendment to the bill recommended on behalf of the Wichitas. 
We would add an amendment or paragraph to the bill drafted and 
recommended by the Secretary of the Interior to the effect that if the 
Wichitas are given the right to sue copies of their petition or peti-
tions shall be served on the principal chief of the Choctaw Nation 
and on the governor of the Chickasaw Nation, and, if upon exami-
nation of that petition it shall appear that our rights are involved or 
affected the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations may intervene by filing 
a petition, and then the court will have the right to determine whether 
the Choctaws and the Chickasaws were the owners of the lands in 
question prior to the treaty of April 28, 1866, and whether the con-
sideration therein agreed to be paid was fair and reasonable; and if 
the consideration be found not to have been fair and reasonable, then 
judgment may be entered against the United States and in favor of 
the Choctaws and Chickasaws for the fair and reasonable value of 
such lands, less any sum or sums that shall have been heretofore paid 
by the United States for such lands or any part of them. 

I now come to a consideration of the treaty of 1866. By article 3 
of the treaty of 1866 the Choctaws and Chickasaws ceded the lands 
which they had leased under the treaty of 1855. Under the treaty 
of 1855 these lands were leased for certain definite and specific pur-
poses. It is well known that between the dates of the treaty of 
1855 and treaty of 1866 the Civil War had come and gone. The 
Choctaws and Chickasaws had taken the side of the Southern Con-
federacy. When the treaty of 1866 came to be made it was really 
a treaty of reconstruction; and the representatives of the Govern-
ment announced that by reason of their having sided with the South-
ern Confederacy, the treaties were all stricken down; and it was a 
matter of reconstruction and a rearrangement of their relations with 
the Government was necessary. Under those conditions the treaty 
was negotiated; and I will now read article 3 of the treaty of 1866: 

ABT. 3. The Choctaws and Chickasaws, in consideration of the sum of $300,-
000, hereby cede to the United States tlie territory west of the 98° west longi-
tude, known as the leased district. 

That is the land described upon this map, lying between the 
ninety-eighth and one hundredth meridians of west longitude and to 
which I have referred heretofore. Now, then, gentlemen, it has been 
held by the Supreme Court of the United States that the language 
contained in article 3 of this treat}" of 1866 was a cession without 
condition. The consideration of $300,000 applied to that vast area 
of land of more than 7,000,000 acres would be less than 1 cents per 
acre. The Choctaws and Chickasaws have shown, in the Court of 
Claims and in the Supreme Court of the United States, that they 
had no thought of doing anything except to confirm the right of 
lease in the United States which had been granted in the treaty of 
1855. But the effect of that language contained in the treaty of 
1866 has been passed upon by the Supreme Court of the United 
States, and to that I shall make ample reference later on. 

The question which presents itself here and the question to be 
presented to the court upon intervention is. Whether in view of the 
fact that the word " cede " was used in the treaty of 1866, the pitiful 
consideration of $300,000 was an act of fair dealing between the 
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necessary for the Choctaws and Chickasaws to confer citizenship 
upon 10,000 freedmen and to give them more than 400,000 acres of 
land. 

It is well known, as a historical fact, the Choctaws and Chickasaws 
did not intend to cede that country. The Supreme Court has held, 
however, that the language of the treaty can not be modified by the 
court. The Supreme Court holds, in the case to which I will pres-
ently refer, that, under the act conferring jurisdiction, there is no 
other way for the court to hold, because the treaty uses the word 
"cede," and that to cede means to grant. The Supreme Court says 
that, under the act conferring jurisdiction, it could not hold other-
wise; but at the same time that great court took the Choctaws and 
Chickasaws by the hand, even as a father would lead his children, 
and led them to the door of Congress for their relief; that the rea-
soning and decision of the court could not be otherwise; that, by 
reason of the language of the treaty of 1866, it could not avoid the 
conclusion it reached, but il! any wrong was done, if the consideration 
was inadequate, the remedy was with the Congress and not with the 
court. • 

I now come to a consideration of the litigation that has heretofore 
grown out of the language of cession contained in the treaty of 1866. 
The case is The Choctaw and Chickasaw Nation v. The United States 
and the Wichita and Affiliated Bands of Indians. Now, then, you 
gentlemen will understand that this map contained in the decision 
of the Supreme Court of the United States, to which I shall refer, 
shows the entire area of land contained in the treaty of 1830 and 
patented in 1842. The Chickasaws purchased, for a valuable con-
sideration, an interest in all this land, under the treaty of 1837, so 
that, for the purposes of the present subject you gentlemen do not 
know any difference between the Choctaws and the Chickasaws. 
The tribes own it in common, and their rights are equal, and each 
member of the tribe owns an equal undivided interest in the lands. 

At the" time the treaty of 1820 was negotiated the Choctaws owned 
this entire area. One month after the treaty was negotiated this 
part [indicating on the map] was ceded to Spain. By the treaty 
of 1855 this part [indicating] was relinquished by the Choctaws and 
Chickasaws, and this " leased district" is the part lying between the 
ninety-eighth and one hundredth meridians of west longitude, east 
and west, and between the Canadian River on the north and the Red 
River on the south. That is the area now7 under discussion, and was 
leased for the purpose of settling thereon certain roving bands of 
friendly Indians. 

As to whether the Wichitas are or are not the aboriginal owners 
of this tract, which will enable them to establish a claim against the 
Government of the United States, or superior to the Government 
and the Choctaws and Chickasaws, I know nothing; and I want it 
distinctly understood (and I am stating this for the benefit of Mr. 
Norton, who ŵ as not here this morning) that we have nothing to 
say about the wisdom of the proposed bill. If Congress shall see 
fit to allow the Wichitas to go into court to establish their claim, we 
have no objection, and this bill meets our entire approval; but 
the very reasonable suggestion that if the Wichitas are allowed 
to bring suit to establish a claim to lands which we owned 

4 5 1 7 5 — 1 8 3 



T ^ ^ t f f f « * " « o v e m m e „ t 

tested at t V ^ ' t i l T * "f t h e and T ° M b ] < ! 

, , Now, then. (I , ' ; ' ? t h e r d aim is passed l a v e o u r r ights 
Government of M , f — ' 111 Pursuance of thl , 0 " ' 

« W e d upon th s 1 d L f , t e d S t ates "ncler t h ^ r e i ? ' 8 hy 
Indians. Y o u n l T ' a ] " " « with « ] , „ . ' tr?aty of 1855, were 
18 the northeas ! ! ' a t t h e set " Z T f r i ™ d l y daily to the ., • p a r t of the distriet ? i r t f o r the Wichifo. 

ItZve° CaI1 f h a t - P " 
of the Wiehitas was maAeHdlanf U p o n W 2 S T e n t a C ( I u i l e d 

» 01, the map L the ' / !" ' a n d f h « t is t ' ' , 0 reservation 

f the C h o S w and O d ^ "1 < > a s e d & C h ' " n f o r addi-
«>e heart of everv man ? a S a W N a t i ° n s and f e , V a s w e U known 
rehgion does. This t ' and child , . a l m o s . t as close to 
shall show a little LI \ £ , a i m that has " , '1 '8 ' ' nations as their 
has recognized the claim n n " 1 6 t t " ^ ' and I 

stated, the W a n d bought and „ , f ! " " ' U™ted States 
"leased district " S w e r e settled in it P a r t of the area 
in 1889. There w d remainecl there unhl H n o r t h e a s t corner of , I ' 

that the balance he gold6 " S T ^ n t l l T Z l 
arose and p r o t e s t e d T h e J u Z C h ° « * ™ andT nJ-and a " d 

the Choctaws and Ph; ? o t t h e balance tn l ? aJi.otment, in f e e of 
agreement, of 1891 th i sV , , f the rfehte of 
£ « » of March 2 W ? s i n 

Wichitas shnn i 1' • > a i ]d thus rotifL? •? atitled by act o / n 

b a ^ d s n H a ^ d C J S f e * ' Indians said to t W b a , a n o e * 
? a n d ® of friendly Indians w °« ' "Py this Inn^ S G o v e r n m e n t : 

a S c a l s l S i i t ^ ! 

e o n & S f h a d ^ n ' t d l n ? i i l i i l^p i i i 
^ s s s l l i i f l 

pensation paid and the money distributed and the matter would have 
been ended. But that act limited the courts to a consideration of the 
right, title, and interest of the Choctaws and Chickasaws. I read 
the provision of the act of March 2, 1895, as contained on pages 153 
and 154 of the " Laws relating to the Five Civilized Tribes " : 

That as the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations claim to have some right title 
and interest in and to the lands ceded by the foregoing agreement which'claim 
is controverted by the United States, jurisdiction be, and is hereby, conferred 
upon the Court of Claims to hear and determine the said claim of the Choctaws 
and Chickasaws and to render judgment thereon, it being the intention of this 

on behalf of either party in the hearing of said claim; and the Attorney Gen-
eral is hereby directed to appear in behalf of the Government of the United 
States, and either of the parties to said action shall have the right of apnea! 
to the Supreme Court of the United States: Provided, That such appeal shall 
be taken within 60 days after the rendition of the judgment objected to and 
that the said courts shall give such causes precedence: And provided further 
That nothing in this act shall be accepted or construed as a confession that the 
United States admit that the Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations have any claim 
to or interest in said lands or any part thereof. 

That said action shall be presented in a single petition making the United 
States and the Wichita and affiliated bands of Indians parties defendant and shall 
set forth all the facts upon which the said Choctaw and Chicksaw Nations 
claim title to said land; and said petition may be verified bv the authorized 
delegates, agents, or attorney of said nations upon information and belief as 
to the existence of such facts, and no other statement or verification shall be 
necessary : Provided. That if said Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations do not bring 
their action within ninety days from the approval of this act their claim shall 
he forever barred: And provided further, That it shall be the duty of the 
Attorney General of the United States, within ten days after the filing of said 
petition, to give notice to the Wichitas and affiliated bands through the agents, 
delegates, attorneys, or other representatives of said bands that said bands 
are made defendants in said suit, the purposes of said suit, that they are re-
quired to make answer to said petition, and that Congress has. in accordance 
with article five of said agreement, adopted this method of determining their 
compensation, if any. And the answer of the Wichitas and affiliated bands 
shall state the facts on which they rely for compensation, and may be verified 
by their agents, delegates, attorneys, or other representatives upon their in-
formation and belief as to the existence of such facts, and no other statement 
or verification shall be necessary: And provided also, That said Wichitas and 
affiliated bands shall file their answer in said suit within sixty days after they 
shall receive from the Attorney General of the United States the notice herein 
provided for, unless further time is granted by the court, and in the event of 
failure to answer they may be barred from all claim in the premises aforesaid. 

That said Court of Claims shall receive and consider as evidence in the suit 
everything which shall be deemed by the court necessary to aid it in de-
termining the questions presented, and tending to shed light on the claim, 
rights, and equities of the parties litigant, and issue rules on any department 
of the Government therefor if necessary. 

It is hereby further provided that said Choctaw and Chickasaw Nations may, 
at any time before the rendition of final judgment in said case by the Court 
of Claims, negotiate with the commissioners appointed under section sixteen 
of the act of Congress approved the third day of March, eighteen hundred 
and ninety-three (Twenty-seventh Statutes, page six hundred and forty-five), 
or with any successor or successors in said commission for the settlement of 
the said matters involved in said suit, and move the suspension of such action 
until such negotiation shall be accepted or rejected by Congress; such settlement, 
however, to be made with the concurrence of the Secretary of the Interior and 
Attorney General of the United States. 

That the laws relating to the mineral lands of the United States are hereby 
extended over the lands ceded by the foregoing agreement. 
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was paid later on, in 1883 and 1884. Home of it was paid Some of 
the negroes took their money and went out and then came back 
But for the purpose of the discussion here we will concede that most 
of it was paid, or all of it. 

Now. as I have shown, when the Choctaws and Chickasaws saw 
that the title to this land was passing from the Government thev 
became very much interested and wanted their claim tested but 
their real claim then was the same as their claim now The iuris-
diction of the court was limited to the "right, title, and interest " 
and m filing their petition they were required to file and set forth 
all the facts upon which they claimed title. Under this act the litiga-
tion decided nothing and was barren of beneficial results 

Xow, gentlemen, notwithstanding that fact, when the case reached 
the Court of Claims very voluminous records were made and much 
testimony was taken and the case given the most thorough considera-
tion; and the opinion was rendered by Judge Howry. That was the 
action of the court, excepting that there was one dissenting opinion. 
All of the judges of the court concurred in the opinion of the court 
excepting Judge Peelle, who dissented. Notwithstanding the lim-
ited language of the act conferring jurisdiction; notwithstanding that 
tact, the t ourt of Claims rendered an opinion which extends over 
more than 150 pages. 

Mr. HASTINGS. Cite it in the record, will vou? 
Mr. CORNISH. It appears on page 17 of volume 34 of the Reports 

of the Court of Claims. 
Now, notwithstanding the language contained in the act confer-

ring jurisdiction, which limited the Court of Claims (and the Su-
preme Court of the United States upon appeal) to the right, title, 
and interest of the Choctaws and Chickasaws, and that the Choctaws 
and Chickasaws were limited in their petitions to setting forth the 
facts upon which they relied for title to these lands, notwithstanding 
that act and that language under which the court was given jurisdic-
tion^ the Court of Claims, through Judge Howry, rendered an 
opinion of more than 150 pages, in which every contention and claim 
of the Choctaws and Chickasaws is sustained! The court held that 
the language contained in the treaty of 1866 was no more and no less 
than a lease paralleling, in all respects, the lease of 1855, made for 
practically the same purposes and under practically the same circum-
stances and conditions. 

I will pause here for the purpose of impressing one historical fact 
upon the committee, because I consider it very important. Before 
the treaty of 1866 was negotiated at Washington a preliminary treaty 
was negotiated at Fort Smith. That was the treaty of 1865 and is 
what is called the unsigned treaty. It was sent along to Washington 
and became a part of the records of the Indian Office and is a part 
of the records of the Indian Office to-day; and that preliminary, un-
signed treaty of 1866, which is the basis of the treaty of 1866, and 
which can be made to show the understanding of the Indians and 
what they were doing, contains no cession of this land, but does con-
tain a clause amplifying the lease provision contained in the treaty 
of 1855. Now, here is how that was: The treaty of 1855 gave the 
Government of the United States, for a part of' the consideration, 
the right to settle upon the " leased district" bands of certain roving 
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s a w s f K S S F 

^ s s f 5 s r s «• - o o r d . 
real value. Even f i l l a n d s f r °m the Indians ft ?overnment in the 
termining the legal r i l t V ^ ^ ir "• '̂hT n i autho/fJ6.,^1' b e l o w the1? to the established pr S f e s of ^ n , P a r t i e s t o Proceed o t t r w f j ^ C ° U r t i n de-
one party evolve a c o n s t a t ? interPretation, and on t of « t h a n according 
words of the treaty T f l K 1 0 \ n o t (-onsistent wi?h f ^ a supposed wrong to 

' Ll ie 1 emedy is with the 

^ » contend In 

g s a « wiaaPSSF 
Sss""'- ».v «* Ss 

And one other • 

that if a wrong was done to the Ind nnf h, « I t a I p o h c y - W e may repeat 

of the 
act of March 2, 1895 and , l ' . -I 1 , 1 " '̂, w a s i fi(<l bv the 
fully and finally d i s p C o f t h t t i l * ^ G o r e ™'nent sought to 

i t p r o p e r t ' v - ^ 

tawS szp/y that the 

gone to the Supreme Court « „ , C o " r t o f C I a i ms and have 
and have been whipped on that , " r e o o v e r o n l l l i s claim, 
a right to go to the Court Of ClaimranVJolhTS y ° " y « « have* 
theory that you are presenting to u s« S "P r ™ie Court on the 
T ^ f ^ o T t £ * C o t i i f ^ C d W / 4 ° tl la t statement, 
the bare question of title. It n s l u i ' i ,Supreme Court on 

Principie'of^w t t t if Z f n ' d ^ o l Z t Z , , W e , ^ o g n i Z e <D 
goes into court he is estonner Tf P • a U h l s c l a i m s when he 
litigated that could be S a t e d if t h ' d T ' T ^ ™ t h a t ^ not 
that it is done, and if it is not dnnp tl i ^ ° f t h e P a r t i e s ^ see 

Mr. CORNISH. Yes sir t Z t S l e , d o c t r n i e OF estoppal applies 
known, and if that doctrine should K ° C t n ^ ° t h e l a w that 4 weD 
dependent and helpless ^Zrd of the C ? P ^ ^ ^ I n d i a n s ' ^ 
f i l i n g to stand oS e x c e p t 

t . Mr. HASTINGS. But you did not have any right to q u e s t i o n ^ 

w i ^ i t ^ M w a S l ^ f e ^ ^.Government deal fairly 
was and now is, whether it w s / f a b ^ o n . The question then 
That is all there is to it now and th,V u T D a b l e c°nsideration. 

Xow, gentlemen, I wish to call , " ^ r e was to it then. 
Cheyenne and A r a J m h o e ^ J ^ o S ^ ? ^ 0 t h e d l s P o s i t i «n of the 
were settled on the northwest S o l ^ f e ; 6 8 a n d ^apahoes of approximately 2.000,000 acres When old o i l a reservati<>n 
the people being land hungrv. passed tor the ° k l a h o m a ^ a s °Pened. g v, piessect toi the opening of the Wichita 



hoe land was opened b o d e r V L r f e ' ™ 6 

t t n I f the i I L C i o T f n V t 0 ' d P ' - ? h a t i s a d irect recogni 

o f land ? t-300,000 as compensat ion f o r that 7,000,000 acres 

t j l m a y f a i r h 1 S t t o ' T f 1 ° S i t i o n f u l I y > - d e r tkr^r^nne and 
M r . CORNISH. T h a t is r ight 

« ^ w s s s r A « s s a R 
M r . ^ O R T O N . I misunderstood you . 

i n t T - 0 ? * ™ - T h e committee wi l l understand thot th» f 
and Chickasaws immediate ly became a c t i v e w h e r , t l r C h o c t a w s 

p r o p o s e d to open u p another section o f h e ^ < < T e S d ^ i s M ^ i f * 
immediate ly asserted t h e i r n l n i ™ j . n d d i s t r i c t " ; they 
$2,900,000. ° l a i m ' a n d t h e G o v e r n m e n t pa id them 

I read n o w f r o m the act o f Ma mh 3 1 qqi i 
T h e L a w s R e l a t i n g to the F i v e C i v i L T k f b e T T h ^ - 7 8 u°f 

I n d i a n appropr ia t i on act o f M a r c h 3 1891 T h i s is m the 
And the sum of $2,991,450 be, and the same is hp^h,-

any money in the Treasury not otherwise ^nnrnrit f J ' aPProP™ated, out of 
and Chickasaw Nations of W a n s f ™ t K S mi t 0 P R y t h e C h o c t a w 

which said nations of Indians may have in ? n d ? ' 1 e ' ' n t e r e s t ' a n d ^aira 
by. the Cheyenne and Arapahoe M a n s i f F ™ ^ l a n d s n o w occupied 
lying south of the Canadian R h e r n d no S a i d l a n d s 

and Arapahoe Indians; said hmils ln , , , 1 b y t h e s a i d Cheyenne 
the treaty between the U n i t e d S t a l S n d N e C h o c t Z r ? ' t h r e e o f 

of Indians, which was concluded Vnril t w e n t v X i ^ • Chickasaw Nations 
sixty-six, and proclaimed on the t S t h d ly o f t u t u * S ^ f ™ h U n d r e d a n d 

whereof there remains, after deducting a l l o t ™ , ^ * ? , S a m e y e a r - a n d 

ment. a residue ascertained by survey to ronton p r o y ; i d e d '>y said agree-
and ninety-three thousand one^undred and sixty acTes J * * ? l l u n t l r e d 

appropriation to be paid to such person or Z r l ^ ' three-fourths of this 
authorized by the laws of the said c Z o t " J a r ° ° r s h a 1 1 b e 

such time and in such sums a s d i e t e d a n d r Z t F Z * ^ t h e S a m e a t 

authority of said Choctaw Nation and nnP w L * ^ b y t h e ^ s l a t i v e 
paid to such person or persons as'are or sh^lTP this appropriation to be 
of said Chickasaw Nation to receive the ? d u l £ a u t h o r i z e d by the laws 
as directed and required bv the l e g i s l a t i v p S w V ? e a n d i n s u c h s u m » 
this appropriation to be innned a ^ f Chickasaw Nation; 
the execution by the duly appointed d e W n t i ^ d 5 b e c o m e operative upon 
cially authorized thereto b ^ l a w of r e S e f a n d ^ resP<*tive nations Re-
states of all the right, title interest, and o h i o f ^ ^ , e y a n c e s the United 

c l a i m o f s a i d respective nations of 

~ ^ is - w in 
States; and said releases the President of the United 
shall operate to extinguish a l l S ? w l i e n fuI !-v executed and delivered 
Choctaw and C h u ^ ^ S a t i o s S u, e v e r y k m d a i , d character of said 
which said releases and conveyances SiaH a p p f y ^ * t h e * — t r y to 

ceded in trust but h 'erpie S u p r e m e C o u r t that it had not been 
t ion A c t o f M'arch 3 1891 in w l P T r * ' m t h e I n d i a n A P P ^ p r i a -

question and p a y a fa i r pr i ce f o r the land which t i t P a 

had acquired f o r p r a c t i c a l v lu t b i ^ ^ ' V t h p G o v e r n m e n t 

Cong r ress° E T O N - ^ m n S t h " e h a f l » s t rong lobby in 

h p m m 
M r . HASTINGS. H O W m u c h land is ceded under that? 
M r . CORNISH. A little less than 2,000,000 acres 
M r . HASTINGS S o that Congress appropr ia ted 
M r . CORNISH. $1.25 an i c r e T b o 

do l lar and p a i d it * G o v e r n m e n t a p p r o p r i a t e d every 
£ t J C o T t - S T O L i t - ' S ^ n r j h e t t 

s t a n d ' h ^ S a ^ e t t l ^ ^ T " T ^ 
S u p r e m e C o u r t s f i d it meant because t o n o f W h e 

But I do sav that the S u p r e m e Conr t ? . 1 o u l d d o t h a t 

ion . wh i ch I have read 'to Z S i Z F T P a f 6 ° f i t s ° P i n -
c lusion because it was not nossible ' 1 ' f r e a f h e d that con-
because o f the l imited W i i ^ T o f ?h ° ct n t t a n y l e r conc lus ion 
jur isd ic t ion o f the cause, ^ n d ^ h l t r f t o o i f T h e t t d L T b f ^IS 



hand and led them to the door of Congress and pointed them to 
the power which, and which alone, had the power to correct the 
wrong. 

Mr. NORTON. Congress has control of the Treasury and can give 
you the whole thing if they desire. 

Mr. C O R N I S H . Yes. sir. That covers the matter with reference to 
the Cheyennes and Arapahoes. 

Now, I believe I have covered the subject as fully and completely 
as I can at this time. I wished to bring to you a comprehensive 
statement of this matter, in order that, if you felt, in justice and 
fairness, you should permit the Wichitas to litigate their claims, 
that you permit us to litigate ours at the same time. I am not ask-
ing you to hold that the word " c e d e " does not mean cede, against 
the holding and decision of the Supreme Court of the United States. 
And I do not ask you to decide as to the adequacy of the $300,000, 
or as to whether that was fair and reasonable. But-"bear in mind that 
the Choctows and Chickasaws are not here pressing this matter, 
as an original proposition, at this time. We wish the committee to 
fully understand that. 
^ We discovered this bill here a week ago. The Choctaws and 

Chickasaws have 110 regular attorney here at this time. Their 
principal chief is now a major in the National Army at Fort Ogle-
thorpe, Ga. The governor of the Chickasaws is here. When they 
read 111 the first paragraph of that bill that the Wichitas were seek-
ing compensation for all the lands within the " leased district" they 
became actively interested, in the same way that they probably be-
came interested and active when the Government sought to lay hands 
on the Wichita Reservation in 1895; and so the principal chief of 
the CI loctaw Nation, as I stated in your absence this morning Mr 
Norton, knowing of my interest in' Choctaw and Chickasaw 'mat-
ters. and knowing of my knowledge of their affairs, by reason of 
my long years of service with them, wired me to make a special 
appearance before this subcommittee, in conjunction with Governor 
Johnston of the Chickasaw Nation, adding, in his telegram, that I 
should make that appearance if it was agreeable to the chairman of 
the committee and to the Commissioner of Indian Affairs. That 
telegram was submitted to Mr. Carter, chairman of the Committee on 
Indian Affairs, and by him to the Commissioner of Indian Affairs, and 
they said they had no objection, and I am sure it is agreeable to you 
gentlemen, and it is under those circumstances that I am appear-
ing here to present these views upon this great question. 

Now, just one other thought : I wish to call your attention to one 
condition existing in the State of Oklahoma. Gentlemen, if I buy, 
to-day, in Oklahoma, 40 acres of land from a full-blooded Indian 
and pay him $100 for that land and take from him a deed that is 
regular upon its face, properly drawn, and properly acknowledged, 
and if that transaction is open and aboveboard and in the full 
light of the Lord's sunshine, without any taint or suspicion of unfair 
dealing, there is no way in the world for me to acquire title to that 
40 acres of land (that is, from a restricted Indian, and those Indians 
were all restricted at that time) until I have complied with the laws 
of the Government of the United States itself and have taken that 
deed to the judge of the probate court and have convinced the judge 

of the probate court that I have paid a fair and reasonable compen-
sation for that land. That is the law at the present time: that is the 
law which the Government of the United States has passed, and 
wisely, for the protection of the lands of the restricted Indians in 
Oklahoma and elsewhere. Now, if we were before a court upon the 
claim under discussion I would ask the Government of the United 
States to deal with itself just as it deals with the purchasers of land 
m the State of Oklahoma from the Indians. 

If you gentlemen feel that the $300,000 agreed to be paid was a 
fair consideration, and you are willing to take the responsibility of 
saying that the payment, or the agreement to pay. under the cir-
cumstances, $300,000 for that magnificent estate' of more than 
7,000,000 acres, worth, I will say, upon an average of $50 an acre to-
day; if you are willing to say that less than 4 cents an acre, under 
the conditions and circumstances under which that treaty was entered 
mto, was a fair consideration, and that it is so very fair and so very 
just that we have not the right to have testimony taken upon that 
point, then we would not have much of a case before you. But I 
do not believe you will reach that conclusion. I do believe that if 
you reach the conclusion that the department's bill is to be reported 
by you and reported by a full committee and passed bv the House 
and becomes a law, I do believe you will hold that there is sufficient, 
merit and sufficient reason and sufficient justice in the contention of 
the Choctaws and Chickasaws, in connection with this great matter, 
that would entitle them, in all fairness, to go along into&court if the 
other interests are going into court, and have their rights passed on 
at the same time. 

Now then, gentlemen, I submit myself to the committee for any 
question that may occur to any member of the committee. I do not 
believe I have anything further to offer, unless some member of the 
committee has something to ask me. 

Mr. T I L L M A N . I guess that is all, Mr. Cornish, and the committee 
thanks you for your statement. 

Gov. Douglass H. Johnston, of the Chickasaw Nation, was present 
and was asked by the committee if he desired to submit further proof 
or make any statement, and he stated that Mr. Cornish had submit ted 
everything and he did not care to offer anything further. 
. ( A n d thereupon, at 3 o'clock and 40 minutes, the committee ad-
journed. ) 
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